
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 20 August 2018

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES
On: Tuesday 28 August 2018 At: 10.00 am

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 
2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor D Hurley (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, C Cottle-Hunkin, K Davis, P Hackett, R Hicks, J Himan, 
R Lock, D McGeough, J Whittaker and R Wiseman

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies for Absence 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.  Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 16 July 
2018 (Pages 3 - 7)

3.  Action List (Page 8)

4.  Public Contributions 
Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme

5.  Forward Plan (Page 9)

6.  Declarations of Interest 
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being considered.



- 2 -

7.  Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II 

8.  Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee 

9.  Gypsy & Travellers (Pages 10 - 16)
To receive the report of the Customer Support Manager

10.  Transforming Torridge Programme 
To receive a verbal update from the Head of Paid Service and Leader (standing item)

11.  Debt Recovery Presentation 
To receive a presentation from the Council Tax Team Leader

12.  Exclusion of the Public 
The Chair to move:

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 2 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

13.  PART II (CLOSED SESSION) 

14.  Non Recoverable Debts (Pages 17 - 23)
To receive the report of the Customer Support Manager

Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Monday, 16 July 2018 - 6.30 pm

PRESENT Councillor D Hurley (Chair)
Councillors A Dart, D Brenton, C Cottle-Hunkin, K Davis, 
P Hackett, R Hicks, J Himan, R Lock, D McGeough, J Whittaker 
and R Wiseman

ALSO PRESENT J Wallace - Head of Paid Service
S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
J Hollis - Senior Solicitor
A Redwood - Property and Procurement Manager
S Toon - Customer Support Manager
J Williams - Environmental Health & Community Safety 

Manager
S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer

                       Councillors:  A Inch, N Laws, P Pennington, P Christie and
                       C Simmons
                       
                       S Dengate – Non elected Member

                      3 Members of the public

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

18.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

No apologies for absence were received.

19.   MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 4 JUNE 2018. 

It was proposed, seconded and -

Resolved:   That the Minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2018  be signed as a 
correct record.

(Vote:  For 9, Abstentions 3) 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

Matters Arising:

Councillor Lock enquired as to whether the Gypsy & Traveller Working Group had 
been given a steer from Bideford Town Council.    The Chair advised that Councillor 
McGeough, who sits on the Group, was also there representing Bideford Town 
Council so no further involvement from the Town Council was required.   Councillor 
Brenton objected to this, stating that not all Town Councillors are dual-hatted and 
he felt the Group needed the independence of Bideford Town Council.

20.   ACTION LIST 

Minute No 3 – Community Housing Fund

The Senior Solicitor confirmed that an email had been circulated to Members of the 
Committee.   

21.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

There were no public contributions.

22.   FORWARD PLAN 

Councillor A Inch referred to the Gypsy and Traveller Working Group meetings, and 
enquired as to whether any outcomes from those meetings would be brought to this 
Committee.   The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed a report would be 
included on the Agenda for the 28 August meeting of this Committee.

The Forward Plan was noted.  

23.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion.

24.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II 

There were no Part II items.

25.   URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

26.   ASYLUM DISPERSAL 

The Customer Support Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was to 
seek Member approval to participate in the Governments Asylum Dispersal 
Scheme.

Page 4



3

During the discussions, Members gave support for the Scheme but acknowledged it 
would be challenging to find suitable properties.   Councillor Whittaker referred to 
recommendation 2 in the report and suggested that “individuals” be replaced with 
the word “families”.    The Committee supported this amendment.   

It was proposed by Councillor Whittaker, seconded by Councillor Lock and -

Resolved:

1. That the District of Torridge to become an asylum dispersal area, and

2. That the type, location and number of properties be agreed and 
consideration to be given to families.

(Vote:  For 9, Against 3)

27.   ADOPTION OF A REVISED HOUSING ENFORCEMENT POLICY 

The purpose of the report, presented by the Environmental Health and Community 
Safety Manager, was to seek Member approval to a revised Housing Enforcement 
Policy.   This Policy would support the work of the Housing Renewal team in 
relation to private sector housing and houses in multiple occupation investigation 
and enforcement work.

The Committee were informed of the following amendment to the report:

HMO amenity standards –  The amenity standards to be brought back to a future 
meeting of this Committee for adoption.

Following a brief discussion it was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by 
Councillor Hackett and -

Resolved:

That the revised Housing Enforcement Policy for Torridge District Council be 
approved.

(Vote:  For 10, Against 1, Abstentions 1)

28.   OLD CATTLE MARKET BUILDINGS - DEMOLITION 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) and the Property & Procurement Manager 
jointly presented this report, which detailed the processes to be followed for a legal 
demolition.

Councillor Brenton referred to his question submitted at Full Council on 18 June 
2018, and the procedures that were followed, in particular the suspension of 
standing orders and the decision made.  He strongly disputed the advice given at 
that meeting.

Page 5



4

The Senior Solicitor reiterated the advice he had given, and stated that the 
Constitution had been adopted by Full Council, and the process in relation to 
Questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9 were outlined therein.   

The Head of Paid Service also highlighted the procedures to be followed and 
reminded Members of the Emergency Procedures should they wish to bring a 
matter forward.  She also reassured Members on the health & safety aspect of the 
site.  This is constantly being monitored and kept under control.

Members raised concerns with regard to the inclusion of financial information in 
Part 1 of the meeting, and the reasons why they felt the report should be in Part II.  
The Head of Paid Service, although in agreement with the comments made by 
Members, explained a decision had been made to include the report in Part I to 
ensure transparency.  There is a requirement for the Councils financial information, 
to include the capital budget, to be made public.

The Property & Procurement Manager addressed a suggestion that the works are 
carried out in-house.  He explained that the Council does not have the particular 
skills and expertise needed for the works required.

It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Brenton and -

Resolved:

a) That the process(es) required to be followed to enable a legal demolition of 
the old Cattle Market buildings to take place be noted

b) That the progress made to date to facilitate as early as possible the 
demolition be noted

c) That the demolition of the Cattle Market building as proposed in the report 
and in light of the resolution of Full Council at its meeting of the 18 June 
2018, be approved

d) That the submission of a “prior planning application” for notification of the 
proposed demolition of the old Cattle Market Buildings be approved

e) That the virement of additional funds (should the costs exceed £78,000) from 
the Regeneration Capital Allocation (£1.5m Budget) as necessary (cannot 
exceed £100,000 as a Full Council decision would be required) be approved.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

29.   DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the report, the purpose of which was 
for Members to note the draft statement of accounts for 2017/18 and to decide how 
to allocate the surplus generated during 2017-18.

Page 6



5

Following a brief discussion, it was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by 
Councillor Whittaker and -

Resolved:

1. That allocating the resources to the various reserved identified in the report 
be approved.

2. That the potential volatility in Business Rates income be recognised and the 
level of reserves/provisions held to meet this volatility be noted.

(Vote:  For – Unanimous)

30.   TRANSFORMING TORRIDGE PROGRAMME 

The Head of Paid Service gave a brief update on the works being carried out at 
Riverbank House.  HR Team and Elections Team had now moved to Bridge 
Buildings.

Councillor Whittaker advised that the Members Room on the ground floor was no 
longer available, and she offered the Leaders Office for Members to use.  The 
suggestion by Councillor Whittaker that the Leader did not need to have a room 
was supported by Members. 

The Property & Procurement Manager gave an update on disabled access to 
Riverbank House.  Following discussions with the Contractor, this matter had now 
been finalised and an email would be circulated by the end of the week.

The meeting commenced at 18.30pm and closed at 19.35pm

Chair: Date:

Page 7



ACTION LIST

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 16 July 2018

Minute 
No.

Action By Who Date 
Contacted

Completed

2. Action List 

Dragons Den project work 
ongoing

S Kearney Email 5.6.18 Work ongoing - report to be brought to a future 
C&R meeting

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 3



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2018/2019

Leadership 15 May 2018
2pm 

26 June 2018
2pm

14 August 2018
2pm 

25 Sept 2018
2pm 

13 Nov. 2018
2pm 

8 January 2019
2pm 

12 February 2019
2pm 

9 April 2019
3pm 

Community 
& Resources

(Mondays)

4 June 2018
10am 

16 July 2018
6.30pm

TUESDAY
28 August 2018

10am

15 October 2018
6.30pm 

26 November 2018
10am

14 January 2019
6.30pm 

4 March 2019
10am

TUESDAY
23 April 2019

10am

Finance Draft Outturn Report 
(DH)

Performance QBR Q1
(Any 

recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny)

QBR Q2
(Any recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny)

QBR Q3
(Any recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny)

Other Bradworthy 
Community Transfer 

(AW)

Bone Hill Northam 
Community Transfer 

(AW)

Use of Blo Karts on 
Westward Ho! 

beach for 2018 (SK)

Devon Wide 
Housing Assistance 

Policy (under the 
RRO) (Janet 

Williams)

Gypsy & Traveller 
Site (ST)

Hotel site at 
Westward Ho! (JH)

Private Sector 
Housing 

Enforcement Policy 
(Janet W)

Housing of Asylum 
Seekers (ST) 

Demolition of Cattle 
Market Buildings 

(SH) 

Debt recovery 
presentation by Council 

Tax Team Leader 

G&T Update (ST)

Part II
Non recoverable debts 

(ST)

Review of Parking 
and display machines 

to charge for time 
parked only (SK)

Torridge Business 
Investment Scheme

(SK)

Westward Ho! Park –
Notice of Motion (SK)

Littering (Janet W)

Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement 

Policy – Amenity 
Standards for 

adoption (Janet W)

Cattle Market site 
proposals (JJ)

BMX Track – fencing 
issues (Plans meeting 

Aug 18) (AR)

Storage Recycling Fleet 
(SH)

4 March 2019

4 February 2019
Budget SpecialP

age 9

A
genda Item

 5



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Customer Support Manager
To: Community & Resources
Subject: Gypsy & Travellers 
Date: 28 August 2018 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To update Members on the work of the Gypsy and Traveller Working 
Group.

1. INTRODUCTION
The Gypsy & Traveller Working Group (GTWG) was re-established in late 2016 and is 
chaired by Councillor Catherine Simmons (Lead Member for Housing) and supported by 
officers. The GTWG have presented three previous reports to this committee which are 
summarised below:

 29 August 2017 Update on `Call for sites` which was being done jointly with North 
Devon as it formed part of the Local Plan requirements. The report also sought 
approval to use Riverbank car park `Bank end` as an interim tolerated trespass site 
for which members agreed.

 04 December 2017 The report updated Members about the public protest that took 
place outside Riverbank House on the afternoon of 12 October which was followed 
by a petition to Council on 30 October 2017 objecting to the use of `Bank End` as a 
tolerated trespass site. The report also asked Members to consider the use of a site 
in private ownership at Caddsdown it was resolved that the Council should continue 
to look for alternative sites.

 04 June 2018 Members were updated on the outcome of the `Call for Sites` which 
had identified four sites that might be appropriate to provide permanent 
accommodation to meet the future needs of our resident traveller accommodation, 
but failed to identify any sites that have potential to provide transit accommodation 
suitable to address the transient population that currently form encampments from 
time to time, principally in Bideford. The report sought approval to develop and use 
an area of the Cattle Market site as tolerated trespass this was rejected by Members 
who also rescinded the use of the Cattle Market and Bank End sites for tolerated 
trespass. It was agreed that the GTWG should continue to meet to review both 
existing and future opportunities that would facilitate the needs of appropriate 
traveller accommodation.

Recognising the challenges the GTWG face in finding appropriate traveller accommodation it 
was agreed to expand the Membership of the working group to include the following 
Members to ensure that the principle towns of Bideford, Holsworthy, Northam and Great 
Torrington are represented:

 Councillor Simmons
 Councillor McGeough
 Councillor James
 Councillor Laws

The expanded working group met on 6 July 2018 and were supported by the Strategic 
Manager (Resources), Customer Support Manager, Property Manager, Environmental 
Health & Community Manager and the Senior Planning Policy Officer.

Page 10

Agenda Item 9



2. REPORT

Recognising the addition of new members to the GTWG, a detailed background briefing on 
the need for provision in Torridge was delivered by the Senior Planning Officer; noting that, 
in collaboration with other local planning authorities across Devon, the Council 
commissioned consultants in 2014 to complete an assessment of the accommodation needs 
of travellers for the area. This assessment identified the need for nine additional pitches of 
permanent traveller accommodation in Torridge over the period 2014-2034, with a view that 
this could generally be addressed through small scale extensions to existing family owned 
sites.

Highlighting that the permanent accommodation is that which is intended to meet the needs 
of the area’s resident traveller population (i.e. those that live here) and generally provides 
them with a ‘base’ in which they reside when they are not away travelling. There would be an 
expectation that, in general, any future permanent traveller accommodation in the area 
would be privately funded and delivered. There should not therefore be a need for the 
Council to provide any public subsidy to deliver this form of accommodation.

It was noted that the assessment also identified a need for provision to meet the needs of 
the transient traveller communities – that is those who visit the area from time to time and 
wish to stay for a (relatively) short period of time, before moving on. In this case, the 
assessment identified a need for four to five sites, each of four or five pitches, of ‘transit’ 
provision, in the form of emergency stopping places or more formal transit sites across the 
wider study area as a whole (i.e. across Devon). In doing so, it advised that these sites 
should be provided in locations where the most encampment activity has tended to occur. 

It was highlighted that in Torridge, transit activity tends to take the form of unauthorised 
encampments a handful of times each year; lasting generally no longer than a couple of 
weeks at one time, usually comprising relatively modest numbers of travellers and caravans, 
and principally arising in and around Bideford, focussed on the Cattle Market Car Park at 
Chanters Road. 

It was indicated that, based on the history of encampment activity in the area, the 
assessment would suggests that Bideford is a location which would benefit from ‘transit’ 
provision, likely to be in the form of an emergency stopping place or more formal transit site.

On this basis, the GTWG were informed that the draft North Devon and Torridge Local Plan 
establishes a target for the provision of two emergency stopping places or transit sites 
across northern Devon by 2031; effectively recognising the need for sites in and around 
Barnstaple and Bideford to address known unauthorised encampment activity.  

The GTWG were reminded that in reality, the only practical option for the delivery of an 
emergency stopping place or a transit site is through the use of public funds. The rationale 
for providing a site is twofold – it is about the fair treatment of the traveller communities and 
ensuring that they have appropriate accommodation available to them when currently there 
is none available. The second is about enabling the Council to better manage visiting groups 
of travellers, being able to direct them to an appropriate location and in doing so ensuring 
betterment to the settled community, protecting their amenity and minimising nuisance. It 
can also provide the Council with a stronger position should it be necessary to take action to 
move on travellers if their encampments are in inappropriate locations. 

Page 11



The GTWG were also provided with a summary of the work completed to date; noting that 
the Council has undertaken a significant programme of work to progress the provision of 
traveller accommodation, in an effort to address the identified needs. 

It was highlighted that historically, the GTWG has completed extensive work to review the 
Councils own land holdings, with a mind to identifying any sites that could be utilised for the 
provision of transit accommodation; being unsuccessful in doing so. 

With respect to the provision of accommodation for travellers, it was noted that national 
planning policy (Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, August 2015) requires local planning 
authorities to plan positively to meet identified needs, including the allocation of sufficient 
sites in a local plan to meet such need. On this basis, the Council has embarked, in 
collaboration with North Devon Council, to prepare a Traveller Site Allocations Development 
Plan Document (DPD), which will look to allocate sites for traveller accommodation.  The 
work on this DPD formally commenced with a six week public consultation on the scope of 
the document in September 2016. 

Following on, the GTWG were advised that the Councils jointly commissioned consultants to 
complete a study with the purpose of identifying and assessing sites with the potential to 
deliver traveller accommodation; the objective being to try and find sufficient sites to meet 
identified needs. The consultants, working with the two Councils, have carried out an 
extensive programme of work in an attempt to identify potential sites, including: 

 a member briefing session to explain and promote the study;
 a comprehensive ‘call for sites’ exercise, incorporating the publication of press releases, 

media briefing, public notices, and notifications to more than two thousand individuals 
and organisations (including public sector organisations, planning agents and town and 
parish councils) seeking details of potential sites;

 an exercise to contact land owners and planning agents who had previously promoted 
land to be considered for the delivery of housing;

 a review of Council owned land assets;
 a review of all existing sites providing traveller accommodation; and
 consideration of further potential sites suggested to the Council through public meetings. 

In doing so, the group were informed that the study identified around fifty sites that were 
taken forward for consideration. All of these identified sites were subject to a rigorous 
assessment process that considered their potential suitability, availability and achievability 
for the delivery of traveller accommodation.

It was made clear that whilst the Consultants are still in the process of completing the final 
report for the study, the emerging findings suggest that a number of potential sites for 
providing permanent traveller accommodation have been identified across North Devon and 
Torridge. However the study has been unsuccessful in identifying any sites with the potential 
to be taken forward for use as an emergency stopping place or transit site.    

The GTWG was advised that the sites identified as having the potential to provide 
permanent traveller accommodation will be taken forward for consideration through the 
progression of the local plan and the Traveller Site Allocations DPD, being proposed for 
allocation if considered appropriate to do so. 

It was noted that given the challenges in identifying and establishing a permanent site the 
Council needs to reflect on the type of transit provision that it may wish to provide, ranging 
from:

 a tolerated trespass site – a specific designated site, usually in an 
alternative use on a day-to-day basis (such as a public car park), where 

Page 12



encampment activity is formally ‘tolerated’ by the Council for short periods of 
time (1-2 weeks) and where temporary facilities are provided; with 
occupation being allowed subject to the occupants complying with a set of 
rules governing matters such as conduct, duration of stay, etc.;

  an emergency stopping place – a basic site set-aside specifically for 
travellers to use for slightly longer periods of time (around 4 weeks) and 
providing simple facilities on either a temporary or permanent basis 
(potentially including simple amenity block(s) offering toilets, wash facilities 
and showers, along with water provision, waste collection and electrical 
hook-ups), with occupation being allowed subject to the occupants complying 
with a set of rules governing matters such as conduct, duration of stay, etc. 
and potentially subject to a modest fee; through to

 a transit site – a more comprehensive site, site set-aside specifically for 
travellers to use for slightly longer periods of time (up to six months), albeit 
temporarily, and providing a better range of facilities, such as higher 
specification amenity blocks, electrical hook-ups, more formal pitch division, 
landscaping and play areas, with occupation being allowed subject to the 
occupants complying with a set of rules governing matters such as conduct, 
duration of stay, etc. and potentially subject to a contract/ licence and 
payment of a fee/ rent.

Given the limited scale, duration and occurrence of unauthorised encampment activity that 
tends to take place within the District, the Council needs to consider what type of site might 
best address needs, whilst balancing costs and benefits that are likely to arise in each case 
for the traveller and settled communities. 

The group also considered the following:

The petition consisting of 183 signatures presented to Council on 18 June 2018 from local 
residents requesting that the Council take preventative measures to stop the Cattle Market 
site being accessed by travellers. 

The Customer Support Manager explained the challenges in achieving such a request 
recognising that the site is a public car park used 7 days per week by a range of users and 
that the site also provides access to the South West Water Sewage treatment works.

Consideration was given to the installation of:

 Automated barrier system similar to those found at other car parks but this was 
rejected on the basis that this type of system will not prevent the type of 
unauthorised access that the petition is requesting. 

 Locking gates which would be closed each evening, again this was considered 
unsuitable as customers returning late to their vehicle would not be able to leave the 
car park and access to the South West Water treatment works which is required on 
a 24 hour basis would also be impeded. 

The group agreed that it was not practical given the operational nature of the site to install 
any physical barrier that would impact the principle operation of the site as a public car park.

Page 13



The decision of Council (18 June 2018) to demolish the old Cattle Market sheds on the 
grounds of Health & Safety and how this may  provide a larger site for travellers given our 
inability to physically prevent the use of the Cattle Market site by such groups. Equally, in 
doing so, the noise attenuation benefits provided by the structures would also be lost, 
resulting in the potential for increased disturbance to the settled community should future 
unauthorised encampments occur. 

Ongoing Work

With respect of addressing transit activity, the GTWG continues to proactively pursue 
potential opportunities for the delivery of a long-term solution that will address the needs of 
the traveller communities whilst respecting the area’s settled communities.   

Recently, three potential sites for transit accommodation brought to the Council’s attention at 
Loxdown Woods (Nr. Wear Gifford), Seabreeze, Appledore and East-the-Water (Bideford)  
have been assessed and regrettably  do not offer an appropriate opportunity. In parallel, 
proactive enquiries are being made with land owners of a number of other sites on the 
outskirts of Bideford which have been identified by the GTWG as seemingly having scope to 
be suitable for delivering transit accommodation. 

 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
The Council is required to recognise the needs of Gypsy’s and Travellers and to provide an 
appropriate number of pitches as directed by the Ministry for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG).

Case law has established that Roma Gypsies and Irish Travellers are covered by the 
protective characteristic of `Race` in respect of the Equality Act 2010.

Local authorities have a duty under the Equality Act 2010 to actively seek to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and promote good race relations.

Financial Implications
The Council has allocated £600,000 in the Capital programme to enable the purchase and 
development of Traveller site(s) within Torridge to meet identified needs. 

Members previously agreed to spend up to £10,000 of the £600,000 on the Riverbank 
‘tolerated trespass’ proposal of which £7,000 was spent on infrastructure prior to the 
proposal being rescinded.

Consequently, at this time £593,000 remains set-aside in the Capital Programme to support 
the delivery of traveller accommodation. 

Human Resources Implications
The Council has a legal obligation to Gypsy and Travellers and have established a range of 
procedures that enable officers to ascertain and establish their welfare needs and to manage 
their occupation when on site.

The unauthorised encampment of Gypsies and Travellers can create additional customer 
contact which previously has absorbed a considerable amount of officer time at all levels.

Page 14



Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
The Council’s existing/historical approach to the toleration of Gypsy & Travellers is not 
sustainable.

Equality/Diversity

Gypsies & Travellers cannot be discriminated against and the Council has a legal duty to 
provide either an appropriate transit and or permanent site(s).

Risk Management
The identification and establishment of formal transit provision for travellers would enable the 
Council to better manage unauthorised encampment activity and mitigate potential impacts 
on settled communities.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
The assessment of potential sites formed part of the work required to progress the 
preparation of the Local Plan. The draft Local Plan identifies the need to provide both 
permanent and transit accommodation for travellers, with a subsequent development plan 
document intended to allocate appropriate sites as necessary. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views

Councillor Catherine Simmons (Lead Member Housing) 10 August  2018

This is a difficult problem to solve but I am pleased that officers have done their best to find a 
suitable site.  I know they will continue to use their best endeavours to achieve a sustainable 
transit site.  It is important to solve this because it will continue to cause distress to the 
settled community until a suitable transit has being found.  It is imperative that proper 
consultation is carried out with the neighbouring land users and Bideford Town council when 
a site is found.  We need to reassure the settled community that the site will be well 
managed.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Council has a legal obligation to cater for the needs of the travelling communities arising 
within Torridge. 

The independent and objective process conducted by DLP has failed to identify any sites 
appropriate for the development of a permanent transit solution.

In the absence of appropriate transit provision the Council has limited legal powers and 
control when an unauthorised encampment occurs.

Historically, when travelling through Torridge the Gypsy and Traveller community have 
predominantly used the Cattle Market site and are likely to continue to do so irrespective of 
any decision reached in the absence of a permanent site.

All sites put forward and proposed so far have been evaluated and considered but to no 
avail.

Page 15



The GTWG will continue with its proactive search and report back to this committee 
periodically as and when sites are identified and evaluated for there suitability.

The type of provision i.e. Tolerated trespass, emergency stopping places or transit sites will 
need to be considered once a suitable location is secured.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that Members note the content of this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations:

Contact Officer: Simon Toon (Customer Support Manager)

Background Papers:

Page 16



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 16 July 2018
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	5 Forward Plan
	9 Gypsy & Travellers
	14 Non Recoverable Debts
	Appendix July 2018


